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1
~.

Q.-Srnitbl May 31, 1912. 9:30 o'clock A.M.

2 Defendan t in Court with Counsel.

3 Jury called; all present.

4

Case resumed.

5 BERT H. FRA1~LIN, on the stand for

6 further direct examination:

7 ~m FORD: The last time you were in Court, Mr Franklin,

8 you were testifying Boncerning a conversation had ~ith ~hr

- .
9 Darrow in reference' to a paper at the Alexandria Hotel.·

10 Will you state v:hat that paper was? A It was a list of

11 names of men that appeared upon the list, as I had them, of

12 jurors in the Hcllamara case.

13 Q Any particular venire?

14 NR ROG~lS: It may be well not to lead him.

15 A I don't know the number of it.

161m FO?D: Vlell, v\·ith reference to any date.

17 A

18 Q

The 25th day of Hovember, 1911.

Villat other name appeared upon that

19 rm .liTEr: Your Honor, of course we interpose no objection

20 to this evidence of the v.i tness concerning the contents of

21 papers and documents, believing it is under our objection

22 that it is secondary; that we made heretofore, no foundation

23 laid.

statement?

TILE COURT: How wait a moment. You want to get !;lr Appel's

J

24

25

26

1:3. FORD: I.lr Franklin --



~ffi FORD: I don't care anything about his statement. I

withdrew the question. I Vias interrupted before I finished.

THE COURT: All righ t, go ahead; propoun(l ~Tour question.

I.m FORD: You stated that l\lr Darrow pointed to tv.-o names

upon that paper and George IT Lockwood Vias one of th€m.

~ili ROGERS: He has not stated anything of the kind, as I

understand it.

1m FORD: Yes, he did,on Saturday.

riR POGERS: I may be mistaken. If he has stated it he

d~eDn't need to state it again.

}ffi FORD:ms I just directed his attention to that statement.

~nat was the name of the other person appearing upon the

list to which he had directed your attention?

MR .APl'~·L: Wait just a moment. Of course, we said before

we made objections to the intrQ~uctiCHlFf any oral state-

ments concerning the contents of papers not being the best

17 eVidence, secondary; and no foundation laid. I say, I don't

18 want to internupt the witness as we go along here, as it is

19 admitted to be ob jected to on tho se gro unds and I'd th tle

20 same ruling of the Court.

21 till Ji"OBD: If we seek, your Eonor, to establish a document by

22 that class of evidence it wO'cld be secondary evidence and

23 no foundation has been laid, and it Viould be improper. I

24 wish to state we are not attempting to prove the documents,

25 but simply directing the attention of the witness to such

26 matters in order that the conversation concernine it

brought up, that is all. Hot seeking to prove the docume
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1 The 9th venire is in evidence here itself, and is the best

2 eVidence of its o~n contents -- should be the 11th venire.

3 TH~ COURT: All right, proceed then.

4 I~iR I!'ORD: Answer the question. A Read the question.

5 (·Last question read by the reporter)

6 Q \7hatwas the name of that other person? A A K Kruger,

7 of the P~ilms •

Q Do you know I.!r Tr '? A Yes sir.8 ..t.>.ruger.

9 Q rihere does he reside? A Just sonth of the Palms in

10 this County.

11 TH~ CO 1]'2 T : IJr Franklin, you will speak just a little louder.

12 We have this fan 6perating up here and. it makes it necessar~y

13 to talk a little louder. A Yes sir.

14 ME. l-'OTI"'9 : How, ha.ve you sta.ted all the conversation that

That is unique, your Honor, but we ~ill let it go.

"pI"'" APPETJ:20 ".il\

21 !/R. "?OGERS .

22 ER :i!'O-r.:D: There has been a break of a day and a half and the

23. \;i tne ss doesn't remember everything he stated in that conver­

24 sa ti on.

15 occ urred at the Alexandria between ;vou and !-.:r Darrow on the. t

16 occas ion? A I don't remember just v,'hat part of it I have

17 told. If you will read. it to me I can tell you.

18 Q Just state the entire conversation, now, so that we may

19 start fresh, that you had with "t.:r Darrow' at the Alexandria.

Wait a moment.

25 A I went into the Alexandria Hotel, to the Grill ~oom of

26 the Alexa.ndria Eotel, /lnd met LIr "Jarro7.. and Er Lincoln st



were bad for the d.efense. I informed. him that und.er his

instructions that I had. some time before that taken all of

dinner. He asked. me if I Vi'ould. have a drink and. I told him

\

477

the reports as ren,lered. as fast as they came in and were

~7es. He then pulled from his pocket a paper and. pointing

to the nBme of George 11 Lockwood and. A K Kruger, he made the

type .....ri tten, I had taken the orig j na1s and. the copies to

betteI'". He then requested. me to take the list or the paper

to my office and. compare them with the reports as rendered

by my operators and. mark those that were good. and those that

fins at a table on,the west sid.eof the dining-room. Mr

statement, "t:hat looks betteI'"; and I sa id., .. "Yea, :; that looks

his office.

Darrow asked me to have dinner and I told. him I had been to

J
~~
it!

1:'
f:
!
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!

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



1

2

3

He then instructed Ite to get Mr. Russell, who had the Cdl:::nJ

tion of the eafe, and had charge of those records, as 1

understood it, and have him come to the office and compare

4 them and make a r epor t on them. He also informed me that

5 ther e were two of hie men, one of wh ich worked with--for

6 me, rather, part of the time, and part of the-time for Mr.

7 Darrow personally, either at his office or at my office,

8 but 1 dontt know which he said at the present time, and

9 that they would assist me in any way 1 could and get two or
x

10 three more of my men and get busy.

11

12

13

Q What were the names of these two men whom he referred t~~
Mr.

employee? A Keene, Fitzpatrick and~Cooley or Cooney,
,./

1 don't know which, Cooley, 1 think--Cooney.

14 Q P. J. Cooney? A yes, eirr-l then bid him goodnight

15 and left.

24 and 1 assign the question as misconduct, because 1 think

25 the district attorney kr-OW8 better; it haa been called

26 to his attention over and over again, and 1 protest agai

Q. You went to the office, did you then? A 1 did-

Q Did you see Mr. Cooney or ~. Fitzpatrick that night?

A I did.

Q Where? A At rrw office.

Q Did you direct·them what you wanted then; to do?

We have requested it three or four times,

16

17

18

19

20

211m. ROGERS. That would not be leading at all, if your Honor

22 please. 1 think this is a character of Witness that ought

23. not to be led.
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1 h is conduct.

2 MR. FORD. 1 maintain 1 bave a right to ask if he did ask

3 them to do anything and what it was. 1 have not led.

4 him or suggested to him what it was--l will put it in the

5 mild.est form 1 possibly can. Withdraw that.

6 Q BY MR- FORD. What was said and done between you and Mro

7 Cooney and Mr. Fi tzpatrick?

8 MR. APPEL. We object to that on t:t:e ground that no founda-

9 tion has been laid, hearsay; incompetent, irrelevant and

10 immaterial to any purpose.

11 THE COUR T. Ob jection overrul ed.

12 MR. APPEL. We take an exception.

13 A 1 told Mr. Fitzpa trick and Mr. Cooney that 1 intended to

14 send that liBt of names with Mr. Mayer, another one of

15 my operators, who was there, to the office of Mr. Darrow

16 and have them compared and that 1 would get a report from

17 Mr. Mayer that night late and 1 would send a report onthe

18 reen 1 wish ed them to look up by the chauffeur of an au to­

19 rrobile that would be at their residence at 6 A.M. in the

20 morning--6 A.M. And they left. No, I--pardon me--l told

Mr. Cooney and Mr. Fitzpatrick that all names appear4d on

the liBt as given to them by the chauffeur in the morning

that were marked N.G., that they were to repair to the

neighborhood in which those people lived and, if possible,

get a telephone and telephone to the person whose names

their
appeared ther eon, and tell them that I . narne had

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1
I

drawn upon a jury list for the McNamara case and if they

2 didn't \;.sh to serve that they had better get away from ho rre

3 because it was necessary to have a personal service for

4

5

6

7

·8

9

10

11

12

them to appear in cour t •

MR. APPEL. 1 move to a tr ike out the s ta teTIen t of the wi tnes8

as to whEtt he informed Fi tzpa tr 10k and Cooney and wha t

ins tr uctions he gave them with respect to the telephoning

referred to by him to the proposed jurors, upon tre ground

that it is incompetent, irrelevant and imrr:aterial, no

foundation laid, haa nothing to do with the issues in the

case, and it is immaterial to any matter ot thing in this

case.

A I think it was in the

13 THE COURT. The motion to strike out isdenied.

14 MR • APPEL. We tak e an exception.

15 Q What particular part of the country did you send Mr.

16 Fi tzpa tr ick and Mr. Cooney?

17 vicini ty--

18 l'R • APPEL. The san:e objection as last.

19 THE COURT. Objection overruled.

20 MR. APPEl,. Exception.

".21 A If my memory serves me correctly, I sent them into the I

22 southwea terly por tion towards Mondta, Gardena, ar.d in the

23 vicini ty of Long Reach, and 1 am not certain about that but

24 I think I gave th ent one name at South Pasadena.

25 Q What was the purpose intended by you in giving those

26 directions--

I



it has nothing to do with the issues of thislaid;

1 MR. APPEl.. We object to that on the groun~ that it is in­

2 competent, irrelevant and immaterial, hearoay--

3 MR. FORD. I didn't finish rrr:J question.

4 MR. APPEL. Well, then, finish your question.

5 Jm, FORD· 1 will ask counsel to give me a. li ttle time, Mr.

6 Franklin, wait a moment and give Mr. Appel time to object.

7 A 1 have wai ted. 1 have not answer ed.

MR. FORD. I wi 11 wi thdraw the ques tion and reframe it.

Q What object had you in notifying these men, these jurors,

to avoid jury service?

1~. APPEL. We object to that on the ground it is incompct­

ent~ irrelevant and irnmateria1, hearsay; no foundation

We think that is immaterial.MR • ROGERS.

4 case, calls for an opinion of the witness, calls for his

conclusion, calls for his own individual intentions, and

no foundation laid in any way, does not tend to conre ct the

deferdartwith any of the matters about which he testified.

MR. FORD- He is testifying to his own intent, your Honor,

and certainly if he remembers his own intent that would be

a fact concerning which he is the very best person quali­

fied to answer.

THE COURT. 1 think the objection that it calls for his

24 conclusion is well taken and it is sustained on that ground

25 MR. FORD. His own intent, your Honor'?

26 TEE COURT. It is a conclusion of the witness.



his mind at that time, a fact which will be a material

fact in this case.

It brings out a fact as to what was

these conspirators was.

MR. FREDERICKS.

HE COURT. 1 believe that is a conclusion the jury must

draw from all the things he did.

MR" FREDERICKS. Well, it is a conclusion, but a fadt also,

1 think, showing what this rnan's--what the intention of

Q BY.MR. FORD. Did you have any desir e in your mind as

to whether these men should serve or not, that is, the jurors

whom you had directed them to notify?

1 MR. APPEL. Wait a moment. We object to that on the same

1 ground stated in our last objection to the previous question

1 THE COURT. Objection is sustained.

if
16

j7
/i~.. \

:11
,

21

22

MR. FORD. What reports did you have upon these jurors

whom you had notified, Cooney and Fitzpatrick, to warn off

of jury service'?

MR. APFEL. We object to that upon the ground it is hearsay

irrelevant and immaterial and calling for an opinion and

conclua ion of the wi tness ; call ing for his cons truction

of reports; not the best evidence; outside of the issuea

in this case and not binding on the defendant.

23 MR • FREDERICKS. one of the very narrow rules of eVidence,

24 and yet one of the things which counsel has declared here

NOVl, it seems to me that the acts and t

in this case would be that this whole matter25 in a s ta tement
\

26 1\ aa a frameup.

I ,
!
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ideas of this man shoWing what he was doing, whom he waa

working for, whether--he has testified here that he was

to show whether thoaemer: so warned were favorable to the

generally accepted sense might mean something else.

'warning certain men whose names appeared on tria panel j

that is, that they were being warned by some telephone call

that their names did appear so they could get away and not

Now he is stating

Of course, that might mean--and in the

Now, it seems to nle th at it i B very rna ter ialbe served.

prosecution or favorable to the defense9

he ~ked them N.G.

\

13

14 1

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
I
I



3 till ROGER 3 : If your Honor please, I expect that they wi 11

,
thl THE COURT: That is a hieroglyphic term; why don't you have

2 him explain it?

,
4 cover it up, now, that I call- their attention to it, but

5 so far the witness has not seen fit to say that he did this

6 at fflr Darrow's direction. lie has not said, notvuthstanding

7 he has gone allover the conversation, that llr Darrow had

8 given him -- he has not said that ~r Darrow told him to do

9 anything of the kind. I expect he will say so now, doubt-

10 less, but it has not come up yet, and therefore the conver­

11 sation is without foundation and is absolutely incompetent.

12 I will put my finger on the face of it all, it is co11ater-

wholly immaterial. Rere is a man acting in concert with

l1r Darrow, and IiII' Darrov; is res'oonsible for every act done

18 by this witness during the time that the conspiracy was in

13 a1

14 ~m FORD: If the Court please, whether Mr Darrow had told

him to do so or whether he had told him not to do so is

19 existence, ~ as long as those acts and declarations were

20 in furtherance of the conspiracy, and that is the law.

1m ROGERS: That never was the law in any civilized country

and never will be the law in any civilized country, and

counsel cannot SilOW me one syllable in an,y law that holds

or declares the acts of a man outside of his directions md

scope of his emplo;yment are material.

Just state,'· !~r Franklin' what the letters :IT G m, ,26 1iR FCR0:
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1 A.

2 Q

no good.

no go odfor whom?

3 l'lR APPEL: We ob ject to tha t, if your nonor please; that is

4 asking fo r an opinion of the vd tness, trying to add to some

5 written document; trying to interpolate something into a

6 iITi tten document. Your Honor ha.s allowed him to state what

7 those letters had without the document being here; without

8 our being able to cross-examine the witness about those

9 documents, and not appearing here, and no~ he says the

10 letters N G appeared there in those documents. Now he is

11

12

asking him what IT G means, and he says "no good". I suppose,
anybody me'.... that v>hen they say a fellov: is IT G they mean he

13 is no good. ITow he says, "no good for whom"? rle ob ~ect to

14 what was in his mind. It is one of those things that would

15 affect the defendant's mind, that must be given in evidence.

16 1.2 Fr..E:9ERICKS: Tha t cannot all be shown at once, your Honor

17 has to be shov.n a little at a time, and step by step.

18 THE CO'DR T: Overruled.

19 1,21.':.PPEL : Exception.

20 rm FORD: Answer the question, no~ood for whom?

21 .Ii Now, Mr Ford, you will have to make your question a

22 little plainer.

23 Q You· have answered that the letters IT G stood for no

24 good. 'tIe ask ;you for whom they were no good? A On that

25 ~articular paper? Q Yes. A I can't answer that question,

26 ~r Ford, for this reason; I did not nrepare that paper and



1 did not mark them. They were marked by one of my operators

2 and I can't tell you.

3 Q

4 .A

5 Q

Had you ever gone over these names with I,lr Darrow?

These particular names on this venire?

I mean with any of the names that appeared upon the

6 venire? A Yes sir, I had.

7 Q And gad you discussed whether or not they were IT G for

8 the prosecution or IJ G for the defense?

9 MR ROGERS: Ob ject to tha t as leading and suggesti~e;

10 incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial, and no foundation

11 laid.

12 THE COUP.T: Just a moment, gentlemen. 'Read that last

13 q.uestion.

14 (Last question and objection read by the reporter)

15 THE COURT: Overruled.

16 I.m ROGERS: Except ion.

17 A I don't remember any name that appearel on that particu-

-

18 lar venire except the names rather of George IT Lockwood and

19 A K Kruger, I think the initials are, and a man, I tJlink,

20 whose name was Ijans, something of the kind, who lived in

21 Lankershim. We had discussed previous to that time the

22 merits, you may say, of I.lr Lockwood and l'.':r Kruger.

23 r.~ FO?~: LOW, at these various -- in theso various discus-

24 sions, was it or was it not your custom to use the letters

25 l~ G to indicate the conclusions you had arrived a t in ref­

26 erence to any particular juror? A That was usual, yes
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Q That was your custom? A Yes sir.

Q Now, under your custom, ~hen you used the letters TI G,

it meant no good for ~hich side did you moan they were no

good?



1 MR. APPEL.

480

Wait a moment, we object to that on the same

11 A Unfavorable.

Jus t see if we can get a rul ing12 MR. APPEL. Jus t a moment.

13 in our favor.

14 MR. Ff:{,EDERICKS. All counsel has to do is to ask for it.

15 MR. FORD. Well, make the objection. 1 will ask the witness

16 ~o answer the question if you are not going to make your

17 obj ec tion •

18 THE COURT. Go ahead, Mr. Appel.

19 MR. APPEL. 1 am waiting for the district attorney to in-

20 atruct me or corr.mand me. 1 object to the question on the

21 ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial; calling

22 for hearsay eVidence) calling for the conclusions of the

23 .w i tness; calling fbr his opinion and no foundati on laid, and

24 because the question assumes a conclusion not testified to

25 by the witness and he is putting a construction upon the

2 I .. th61 ev~a.ence of the wi tness which is not warranted by e

!evidence, but it is the conclusion of
I



----------~

I

and we assign his conclusion in his question, that conc1u-\

sion, as misconduct and error.

MR • FORD. Now, if the Court please, 1 desire to be heard

in that matter jus t a moment. Whatever the wi tness may

have thought at the time the paper was shown to him, was

a conclusion on his part at that time. It was, however,

a conclusion upon which he acted, and a conclusion which he

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8' carried out in directing men to do certain things 0 That

(

9 v' as a conclusion, we will admi t, but now whether or not such

22 A I did.

/
i

on Sunday the

furir:.g my converA

a Not a grea t way

j/

~
if anything,

A Everything that 1 did?

That is near Covina, this county?

At what place? A At his house at Wal nut s tation •

Who else Was present at that time?

THE COURT. Objection sustained.

MR • ~RD. Now, what did you do,

26th of November, 1911?

Q

a conclusion existed in the mind of the witness at that

time is a fact which we desire to introduce in evidence

fronl Covina.

Q Well, 1 will--did you see George N. Lockwood that day?

and the witness t tea tin,ony as to whether or not he had a

conclusion, and as to what that conclusion is, is a fact

concerning which we desire to have hjm;testify at this

time, and believe it admiesi ble--what that conclusion was

at that time.

23 . Q

24 Q

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17 MR. ROGERS. May 1 suggest--

18

19

20

21

25

26
,
I
I-=---'
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tion wi th Mr. Lockwood?

Q During your conversation with ~r. Lockwood. A Not any

body.

Q Just state what was said and done between you and Mr.

Lockwood at that time and place.

MR. ROGERS. He has not given the time, if your Honor

please. He might say what time. of day it was, possibly.

MR. FORD. We have given the date.

MR • ROGERS. We c an all see that, we have been in cour t;

if your Honor pleases, too long to be fooled with that kind

of a thing. He ought to give the time of day. Ask tim I
wha t he did on that day and then he goes on and calls a tten~
tion to one particular thing. Let us have the time of day,

we are entitled to it •

1 have made my objection, no foundation laid..:..------------..-.,.,~

Jus t s ta te the time of day you saw him, as If
near as you can remember. •

The .question i a wi thdrawn, 1 urderetand.THE COUR T •

.MR. FREDERICKS. Ther e is nothing to it, if couns e1 \V i 11

make hie objection.

MR. ROGERS •

18 . for it.

191·~RD.

20

21

A 1 told Mr. Lockwood 1 wished to speak to

22 A About 11 ;30 A.M.

23 Q BY Am. FORD. Just state the conversation at that time

25 him. We walked to the rear of his house and entered the

~6 barn--the stable--l asked him if he had been served with

\ I\L-

24 and place.
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jury summons in the McNamara case and he told me no he

A At about 5:30 o'clock, I

He told me that he would think the matter overacqui ttal.

until the next afternoon at about 4 o'clock, when he would

COD,e to Loa Angeles and ring me up on the telephone am
tell me where we could meet. 1 requested that he come to

the office but he said that he didn, t wish to do that am

had not, and 1 told him I wished to have another talk with

rim in regard to acting as a juror. "Well," he said,

"Fert, that is a dangerous proposition", and asked me what

I could do. 1 told him that 1 could give him $500 in cash

and guarantee him that he would get $3,500 more at the

conclusion of the trial of J. B. McNamara, if he voted for

believe.

Q Abpu t what time of day?

Q Where were you at that time?_ A At ny office.

it was left in that way. 1 gave him my telephone numbers

and left and 1 told him at that time 1 was ready at that tirre

to give him $200 in cash if he wished to accept it.

Q That was the uubstance of the conversation you had at

that time? A As 1 remember it; yes, sir •

Q Did you receive a telephone message next day from him?

A 1 did.

i.1i

1
(.~

1\ 2!c
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6 asked him what he wished to do. TIe then asked me if I

7 could como out to his house that night. I thought the

8 matter over for a moment and told him I could. I asked him

9 what time he wished. me to come -- no, I told him I would be

10 thore about 8: 30 0' clock, and he requested that I come out

11 about nine, that his wife was ill, and would at that time

12 be asleep, and Vie wOllld not disturll her. I told him I would

~e have a right t

.:l Yes sir.

(Interrupting) -- If your Hor.or please, I object

or a man I supposed was Nr LoCkwood -- it sounded

4 ~ Col

Just state what the conversation was over the telephone

Yes.

TIid you ever mention him at any time in any conversa-

Returning to your converi3ation of Sunday, November 26,

Q

to the use of the word "tip" b~1 counsel

tions with r.lr Lockwood?

()

'"

Q

be there as near that time as possible.

!.m FORD:

1911 -- withdraw that question for a moment -- do you know

Captain TIhite? A Captain C E White?

1m ?OG~S: I submit again, if your Honor please, we are \

entitled to have this wi tness relate the con versation ",i tho." I
suggestion, without intination, ....i thout telling him in which \

conversation any particular thing belongs. Eere comes

cOunsel aga in wi th the tip tha t the conversution --

1 Q

3 said

20 I
21

22

23

24

25

26

2 with fur Lockwood at that time and place? A Mr LockViood

4 like his voice -- he said, TfBert, it vms impossible for me

5 to come in to -day, I had to irrigate my alfalfa", and I

13

14

15

16

17

18

19
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3 simply directing him to the certain occasion, XIiH asking

if he ever had any conversation concerning that man, and.

I "ill follo~ it up and ask him ~hen and where and what the
/

4

5

1 ask this 'wi thes3' attention to a parti cular matter, e.nd I

2 defy counselor anybody else to say this is a tip. It was

9 deliberately made, and I will show it to him.

I say again, it was a suggestion and a tip,8

6 aonversation was. This witness has had a great many conver­

7 sations with various pepple.

10 TITE COD"'2T: ~,~r Ford -- 17o\~', lir "'ogers, the Court I>"ill hear

11

12

13

14

you and I want to say to you gentlemen, we will proceed

orderly; it is absolutely necessary, \';hon counsel has the

floor, of either side, he has a right tone heard, and if he

says anything that is improper the COLu't will act upon it,

15 but the Court must act as ~le sole judge as to whether or

16 not counsel's language is proper to be used in Court.

17

18

13 ~OGEES:

matter --

I "..-ant to cell your Honor's attention to this

19 IlR FR~D~~ICKS: There is no objection being made.

Coul1Del v;illing to say '.'That was the conversation of the

ing now to the conversation of the 26th"? ~7hy i..-as not

The gues-I call your attention to this matter:

~nmt was tho necessity for impressing that statement"return-

I.ill. ·TIO GERS :20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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2
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let us have it (all, let us hear what Vias said on the 26th".\
,I
IHe went over .the conversation of the 26th, the witness said I

3 nothing about Captain White, and no";; he comes back and says

4

5

"Returning for a moment to the conve~sation of the 26th", !
then he withdraws that question for the moment, and then he \

6 says "Do you kno','; Captain C E \7}1i te?" 1 say again that it

7 Vias a deliberate tip to tell him of the conversation of the

8 26th; it coula not have been for any other purpose or objec ,

9 and it was not included in the question; it was leading and

10 suggestive, and it ought not to be necessary; this is the

11 kind of a wItness, i:f your Honor pleases, 'who ollght to be

12 asked to relate the conversation and to that we have not

13 objected. Let him relate the conversations as they oc-

14 curred, let counsel say" on the 26th, (licL you he vo a con-

15 vers::ltion" as he has been, v;ithout our objection at-all.

16 But now, when he needs something that vms not pnt into the

17 conversation o:f the 26th, he says to the witness: "?eturn-

18 ing now for a moment to the cony ersat ion of the 26thll
, then

19 he says "1 will withdraw it for a moment", and branches off

20 onto something else, and says "Nas Captain ~hite's name

21

22

23

24

25,

26

ever mentioned, or do you kno ...... him?lI
\



\

I
!.

I
(

",
i

1 say, it is unfair, if

1 can show you dozens of cases where that

to need som ething and put it in.

of eVidence.
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1 have been in court too long, if your Honor please, ~I
not to Bee that; every man in this cour troom can Bee it. )

the witness can see it, and that is not fair with this kind

of a wi tness--w i th the statement in front of them that

they have had ~~. Franklin make and swear to, which they

have never seen fit to furnish us a copy of, they tak e

advantage of the situation and before them they have his

statement signed and sworn to by him, by which they are
•proceeding, and now, if your Honor pleases, we are entitled

to the enforcement of at least the ordinary rules of examina

tion and evidence. As the courts very frequently say, )
I

comes in, and if your Honor pI eas e, 1 su bmi t when they

ask for conversations all they ought to do is to ask this

witness, who seems to be willing enough, what was said at

a certain time, what conversation did you have, was that

all of it, can you remember any more, is there anything

else you can tell us, and then not go back when they seem

sometimes the only protection a defendant has against a

witness of this kind is the strict enforcement of the rules

your Honor please, and 1 protest against it.
23 . MR. FREDERI OKS. Now, may it pI ease the Cour t, we bow wi th

24 . reve:'ence to counsel's knowledge of the law and to his great

p 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

101
!

11 1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

long years of experience in court, and concede all that.

We alao claim that he has no right to make such a speech a

L

25

26
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There is a way of examining witnesses1 he has made now.

2 that has been in existence since courts were. That is to

3 ask questions, and those on the other side who do not

4 approve of those questions have the right to object to

5 them and thenthe dourt rules on the objection. Now, there

6 is no objection filed, there is no objection asked, there

7 is nothirg that the Cour t can rule on, and yet counsel takes;
\"

8 advantage of the si tuation to make a long speech. Now,

9 that may be intended for the Court--

10 THE COURT. (lnterrupting-) 1 ure erstand counsel objected

Here is a witness on the stand who is20 th at id ea in rrind.

21 narrati~g conversaticns that occurred almost over half a

22 year ago, he has been narrating, as the Court will notice,

23 many such conversations. 1t is true tha t this wi tncs8 t

24 tee timony shows that he i 6 an accompl ice and that hie

25 testirrony should be viewed in a manner tte statute says,

26 it shouard be scrutinized very carefUlly, and all that, but

I
I

11 on the ground the question was leading and suggestive.

12 MR. FREDERICKS. (Continuing) --no, 1 do not think there is
J

13 any objection made at all. 1 listened carefully and there!

14 has been no objection made. Now, so far as--if counsel

15 Wishes to discuss the mar its of t'ne thing, if he is dia-

16 cussing it, we will discuss it--

17 THE COURT. (Interrupting) 1 am assumirg that the objection

18 as stated is before the Court.

19 MR. FREDERICKS. (Continuing) --very well, 1 will reply witt
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1 t~at does not mean that we shall not try to show this

2 jury in every honor able and proper way that we can, just

I

3 what the truth was, and if the witness is asked to tell

4 what happened at a certain conversation last October, and

5 has gone over that conversation but has forgotten to tell

6 some particular poi.nt) are we barred fromknowing and remem­

7 bering or thinking what we do, what that particular point

Are we barred now from asking that Witness suchis?

order that it may be brought ou t to the jury and put in

tes timony?

qtestions as will call his attention to that point in
8

9

10 I
I

11'

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



Or must we drive on and forget it, leave it out, and thorebYI

deceive the jury, deceive the jury against our own interests

498

2

3 perhaps? I t is the pUTrlO se of an examination to let the

4 jury know just what happened. No~, that is all we are aim­

5 ing to do, we want the jury to know just what this witness

6 testifies happened there, and we only want to do those thing.

7 that will show that to the jury, and it cannot be said we mu

8 stop a witness when he has said what occurred and narrated

9 it, and we feel morally Sllre in our ovm mind he has for- .

10 gotten something. Would it be proper for us to stop then,

11 ViO~11d it be proper fOT the Court to J)ermi t us to stop then?

12 Certainly not. ~e must go as far as possible. Of course,

LeI

13 we cannot suggest answers to the witness, and ~e do not

14 intend to, but to say the difference between a question

15 that is leading and one that is not leading is a relative

16 matter, a relative difference, and the vice of a leading

17 question is putting the answer in the witness' mouth, but,

18 directing his attention to some particular thing which he

19 may have inadvertently left out, certainly has no vice to

20 it; if it has, then we mnst pass on and deceive this jury

21 and go on, knowing that v,s have done it. now, \,,;e cannot

22 do that. I think there are ti.... O sides to these things, and

23 we only ~ant to go as far as hill be fair to bring out the

24 entire matter, and then let this jury weigh the witness'

25 testimony with the scales provided for it •

.th 26 :.:R. FORD: Ho"., , if the Court please, I y;an t to make



1 Iment. I examined this witness v;l th referenee to a conve:~9 f
j

J

2 sation that occurred on Sunday, Hovember 26th. I then went

over to a telephone conversation on Monday, the 27th.

Then it was suggested to me by Captain Fredericks that the

conversation in relation to rtr 7lhi te had not been brought

out. I immediately turned to ask the witness if he had

testified to all the conversation that occurred on Sunday,

but I didn't finish the question for this reason: this is
is

known to me, and is known to your Honor, and~kno~n to

everybody who tries cases in courts, that the witness had

already testified, as he thought, fUlly to all the conver­

sation that occurred the preceding day. If I had asked him

I
I

that question, not knowing Yihat was in my mind, he viould

prObably have come to the concl usion that he had testified

in full, and wo uld have so answered. It would have been

absolutely necessary for me to attract his attention to

the particular portion of the conversation that I wanted

bro ught out. I did not sa;)1 "~id you on such and such a

time and place do such and such a thing in reference to

such and such a man?" I asked him if he knell Captaf n 7lhi te,

and if he had had any convers2.tion, not the aay before or

any other day, but I asked him two Questions": "Do you know

Captain 1Jhi te?" And he saya, "You mean Captain C E 17hi te'i'r

Said he did know him. I then asked him if

he had an;y- conversation at any ti me ...,.i th !.~r Lockwood.

a right to attract hin attention in that matter. ~hat
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I 1 not a tip and I ask the protection of thi s Court,and I v;ant

2 to. knoVi whether I am going to get it, from insinuations

3 such as made by counsel, insinuating that I have deliberate­

4 ly tried to put something in the mouth of that witness.

5 I don't think it is a fair construction on my language.

6 I want to knovl' whether the Court is going to protect rne

7 agaInst it?

8 THE COUTIT: I think your point is entirely without merit;

9 the di stinction between what co unsel on the other side'

10 designates a "tip", and what you designate as a suggestion,
so

11 is ofAlittle consequence to my mind, except perhaps the

12 form, the phraseology, that amounts to pretty much the

13 same thing in its last analysis, and I see no occasion
the

14 for feeling advanced on that subject.

15 till. FORD: I think the \lord "tip" as used by counsel is a

16 slang term. He can stop anywhere short of pr~fanity.

17 ?erhaps he will swear at me next time and your Honor will

18 come to the conclusion --

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 THE COURT. 1 do not un dere tand the word tip

501

as being

26 rules- are that you cannot suggest to a witness, butther

25 the rule ahall be abided by, if so it may be.

2 offens i ve in any way shape or form and cannot cone true it

3 as such. Perhaps not as convenient a term as "suggest";

4 in its 1 as t analys is' 1 t seems the s arne thing. I under

5 stand the Engl ish language. Le t' s not was te any time

6 on these matters.

7 MR. ROGERS. 1 do not object to his asking if he had a

8 conversation on tte 26th and in that way getting before

9 the jury the truth of this thing, which we desire as much

10 as they, and which we will spend some time in endeavoring

11 to reach in the interest of the truth of this testimony,

12 which we desire to have before them, for God knows we,

13 as much as they, des ire to have this witness' tea timony,

14 which we do not concede to be the truth, and we have the

15 r igh t to measur e this tes timony •

16 MR. FREDERICKS. Now, counsel is rraking an argument on this,,

17 Witness' testimony and are we to ait here and listen to it, \

18 whether this witness is tell ing the truth.

19 :MR • ROGERS. We have aright to contes t that tes tirr.ony by

20 the rules which centuries have sent down to UB; we contend

21 that his tea timony is not true and we have aright to tea t

22 it by each of the combined rulea tnat"the ages have brought
~

23. to ua, and the law has laid it down; th e law 1js

24 Common sense, and therefore we have the right to say that



14 was a sUbterfuge and a suggestion. There can be no other

6 say if he is going to avoid such ar gumenta, as he has had,

7 he should say, as 1 believe 1 would say,if 1 had sat where

8 he is, "Do you ren;ember of saying--of men tioning Captan

16 fact telling the truth, let'a trust him to tell it without

17 being bolstered and wi thout being suggested to, and 1

18 appeal to your Honor that if your Honor wi 11 go t~rough the

19 dec is ions as we have gone, and if your Honor desir es to

20 see them you shall see them, that an accomplice's testimony

21 must be given in accordance With the strictest rules of
\

I,

At whatWhen was tha t done?

'If this wi tness is as a matter of

This is not one of those" cases. Counael should

Why, 1 tell your Honor--I withdraw nothing_ It

are times when counsel may be permitted to suggest and

lead, in the discretion of the Court, that is where it

to the Court as a matter wherein he should exercise his'

leniency, and to a certain extent overlook the strict

conversation and let him tell and not give it to him as

counsel did. Now, turning to the conversation of the 26th­

1 withdraw that questionT-did you ever talk about Captain

5 rules.

9 Whi te to Mr. Lockwood1 Yes.

1

2

3

4

10

11 1

12

13 Whi te?

15 cons tr 00 tion to it.

-!ffi. FBEDERICXS. Isn,t that an argument to the jury?26

22 testimony, and it is to be viewed with distrust, and no dis­

23 cretion on the part of the Court should be allowed to permi t

24 1eading and sugges tive ques tions and it mus t be corrobor a ted

25 by evidence which by itself--
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1 MR • ROGERS. And in order that that may be done, in order

2 that the corroboration may be relating to the exact matter,

3 the exac t tes timony mU8t be giv.m Without sugges tion • Now,

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

in this matter, 1 don't krow whether thia·is a proper place

to bring it,up, but 1 spent a great deal of time, according

to the record, protesting to this conduct on Thuxsday--l

mean on Wednesday. I spent a great deal of time protesting
shows

against it and the record/your Honor said over and over

again that this witness should not be led, and there should

not be suggestion to him, and 1 renew my protest at this

time and 1 incrrporate it inthe record as an exception to th

district attorney--

13 MR. FORD. Your Honor seems to be under the impression

ask--l asked th~t question to bring out a certain thing

14

15

that the question asked by me was suggestive. 1 now ,

"
16 that 1 attracted the mind of the witness to address a

17 certain matter With referenoe as to the manner which he

18 should tes tify on tha t rnatter •

19 Buggestion by the question.

20

21

22

23

24

25

There was absolutely no

26
1

I
!,
!



504
tn The q~estion is absolutely not leading in that sonse or

2 form. The question before this Court is: llnid you ever

3 mention the name of Captain White to Mr Lockwood in any

4 conversationll • That is the question, if you will have it

5 read.

6 I,m. APPEL: May I offer a suggestion? I think that the

7 criticism of I.'::r Pogers only referred to the language used

8 in the question. Counsel seems to take it Mr Pogers

9 referred to some purpose of counsel. We are only saying'

10 that the construction which the question -- the various

11 questions propounded in reference to that SUbject was in

12 effect a suggestion to the Iti tness something that he should l
13 testify. IToVi there is nothing in that -- no\";,,, the Viord

14 lltipll is not necessarily insulting at all. It is used very

15 commonly. It is a short word and many people don't knovY

16 anything abqut the use of the word "suggestion lT and they

17 use "tip l1 and all that, and in referonce to Captain Frec1er­

18 icks objecting to our sayinG that --

19 r,TE FOED: I f the Court please, I 0"0 j ect to any further argu­

20 ment on the subject except the objection before the Court,

21 instead of dis.cussing :Er Rogers, or Cap tain Fredericks, or

26 Frederi cks takes 0 ffense becallse ~.'Ir 'Rogers

22 any1)ody else.

23 :2 .~PEL: ITe have rights ourselves, and I insist --

24 THE CODJ.T: l'roceed, ~·:-r Al,pel, and present your objection.

I am trying to make peace here. nOVi CaptainI.2 AP?EL:
25



1 about --

5051
2 I.m I?TIED=:TIICI:S: Oh no, I haven't taken offense at anything.

3 !.:R ArPEL: Mr "Rogers so. id in 10.7; it is deemed --

4 1.8. l!'O~D: If the Court please, I wish they would not usc

5 that as a handle in or;ler to repeat the argument made upon

6 the question of fact and credibility of the witnes~ to this

7 jury, and I charge tllUt it is an attempt on the part of both

8 of them to tip the jury off to the argument that they are

9 going to make later on, and the thing before this Court at

10 the present time is an objection to the querrtion, and I ask

11 that your Honor direct the gemblemen to confine their re-

12 marks to the ob jection of the question of law before the
,

13 Court. If this argument is continued longer I ask that the j

14

15

16

17

jury be excused in order that the evident object of their

remarks may not be accomrlished at the present time.

l.:n APPEL: They seem to be afraid. anything we say v;ill

affect this jury.

t
i

\
j

18 I.ill FOP-I): Out of sympathy for t.he jury J ask that they be

19 excused.

20 !.:R ),J?PIUJ: I have the greatest sympathy for you. 'Yon don't

21 seem to understand v;hat I am tryins to get at. I am simrly

22 stating Mr Rogers waS speaking from a logal standpoint in

23 reference to the testimony of an accomplice. That being his

24 statement, that IlIhe moanins in 1m\', that the reason 7."hy

25 testimony of an accomplice requires to be corroborated by

26 credible inJepenclent evidence because it is deemed. to be
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1 shady; to bev!e~e~ 0ith distrust, but thero is no harm in

2 suying that vilJich the In... says it~3clf, and the 1 a";; says that

3 ~ronr Eonor is bo UTIlI to tell the jury that, and then the jury

4 ...:ill get it from your Honor. ITo'w, what dif=:'crcnce cloes it

5 L1ake if you tako a dose of salts in coffee or take it in

6 pure v,'uter; you have it both ways.

7 ER I·'Tm1iE?IC7S: Just one .."yord in closing, and it will take

8 lne just a moment -- the point is only this: We are ready

far.

complice, why thrash it out today. tomorrow and the next

It isThis witness is going on to tell a story.

things until the right time comes. Counsel wants to read

jury when the time comes. but we arc bonnel by the rules of

to meet counsel on the argument of this mise before tho'

law.

evident it is their intention to remind th:e jury, to call <'

I
to the jury over and over again, to eet tho jury scared 01

I
i

this man's testimony, to think they have got to look at iit

day and. the next day.

it to the jury again. ITow, the jur;r knOiYS tllis is an ac-

THE CDU!':T: Gentlemen, I think the argument has gone too

i

hOW tha t is the reason why ',';e don't v;ant to go in to these \

1m JJ:PZL: Your llonor, we take ror exception to ar,ything
our

said by both of these prosecutors concerning"purposes here

and assigning too us improper methods because it is

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

--



1 miscond.uct and. although it has: little effect on me,

2 coming from the source it does

I
I
I
I

\
\
\

\
I
I

!25

26

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



1

ouu

THE COURT. ~u. Appel, you have no right to use that languag

2 MR. APPEl.. We protes t to being scolded. by the district

3 attorney or any.one else. Now, cases have been reversed

4

5

6

7

for that, and i protest, your Honor, to this man standing

up here and telling your Honor in the presence of this jury

tha t we ar e trying to intimidate this jury or we ar e ty ing

to put upon them any false ideas. No such thing. We are

8 trying to present this case on our side as we deem just and

9 fair, and according to the little intelligence and the

10 1 i tt1e though t that we have, and we donI t ask for any ass is- \

11 tance on the other s ide as to legal knowJ.edge or as to any-

12 thing else, and 1 object, your Honor. ~.I~ this man glOlt

13 up before this jury and state anything of that kind it

15 Went into this discussion good naturedly and tried to make

16 peace and tried to show of how little moment the whole

17 thing was and Mr. Fredericks wants to get a lot of praise

18 here--

I

I

It is misconduct on treir part, and 1

MR. APPEL.
19 THE COURT. Dontt get personal. /1 will state just exactly

20 what 1 feel and what 1 mean, and 1 mean no disrespect in

21 any way, shape or manner to your Honor.

22 THE COURT. Your personal remarks, however,in regard to the

23 dBtrict attorney or anyone e1ae--

24 MR. APPEL. How about his personal remarks?

25 THE COtlR T • 1 heard none.

26 MR. APPEL. Your Honor allowed them to tell this jury

14 would be error.



MR _ FORD. Your Honor, may 1 have the question read?

THE COURT. oentlene n, 1 agree With Mr. Appel's last state­

ment that this whole matter is too trivial to occupy the

large amount of time it has. The objection is that the.

\
That

The couns el insis ts,

1 don,t see any--

5~91/
your Honor- that we were trying here to influence ;

MR. ROGERS. It has been sustained.

to tell

MR. APPEL. pave 1 no right to protest, your Honor?

is alII want to do.

this jury and intimidate them about the testimony of this

witness. How about that? IS thattfair1

THE COURT. No, sir, it is not.

question is leading and suggestive.

1m .FroRD. 1 think your: Honor has forgotten the question.

Mr. Rogers hins e1 f conceded that the ques tion was proper in

its form. What he objected to was the questions that had

been preceding it and wi thdrawn. 1 leave that to Mr.

Rogers hino elf _

THE COURT· That is not my understanding of the situation at

all. The objection has been sustained. You can have it

read if you want it. The Court will take a recess at

as they have aright to insist, the examination of this

Witness shall be by the strict enforcement of the rules of

~idence. 1 think that the question from which it is pro­

pounded, the manner in which it is presented io sUbject

to that exception, and that the objection is well taken

and it is sustained.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

L
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1 time of five minutes.

2 (Recess for 5 minutes.)

3 (After recess, deferrlant in court with counsel. Jury all

4 present.)

5 JAR • FORD. Now, to save argument, if the Court pleade, 1

6 want to state in advance that after all thio discussion the

7 witness' attention has probably been called to something

8 that indio ates that the entire conversation was not testifie

9 to and 1 will, tr.erefore, ask him if there are any other·

10 matters concerning the conversation of Sunday the 26th with

11 Mr. Lock\'md that you have not testified to, Mr. Franklin?

12 A Yes.

13 Q Just tell the jury what it is. A The question arose

14 as to how Mr. Loch'1vood could be assured of receiving his mone

15 in case he voted for acquittal. 1 told Mr. Lockwood that he

16 could rest assured of:~receiving the money, but that 1 was

17 willing to make any arrangemen~s that sui ted Mr. Lockwood

18 to guarantee the payment of that money. 1 suggested to him

19 that Captain White, Captain C E ~te, be asked to take the

20 money .and pay it to Mr. Lac kw ood upon my order. He 0 b j ec ted­

21 pardon me--he said that he didn~1twish to have anything to

22 do Vi i th Captain Whi to and sugges ted--not at that conversa-

23 tion, no. 1 told him 1 would see him the next afternoon

24 as 1 hage test:ir£ied to heretofore, and it would be made

25 satisfactory to him, 1 thought.

26 Q Now, corning to the telephone conversation, have you

told us all that was said over the telephone on Monday

L _



"Yea. "

511
127th, about half past five in the afternoon, between you

and Mr. J.,o ckw 000. ? A No, air.

Q Tell the jury what else occurred, at ~that time. A 1

said, "Shall 1 bring the Big Fellow with me?", he said,

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

i6

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

'-----
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etel

2

3

Q How, did you have an:l conversation with 1.1r Darrow

after your visit to !i~r Lockwood on Sunday, and before

your telephone conversation on Monday? A Yes sir.

4 Q And at wlmt time and at what place? A My first con-

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

versation with Mr Darrow in regard to my conversation with

~.Ir Lockwood on Sunday, Hovember 26th, was abo u! 9 0' clock

in the morning of Monday, Noverr~er 27th, in his office in

the Higgins Building, ~:1r Darrow and myself being present. '

Q What was the conversation? A I repeated to l:r Dar-

ro ..." the gist of the talk I had had with I&r Lockwood,-- the

exact language I used. at that time I am unable to state, but
yr;ould

I informed him that Mr LookViood arrive in Los Angeles the,..

next afternoon and. v;ould 0£'11 me at my office at about 4:30,

4 or 4:30 O'Clock T.M., and that I had agreed with !~r Lock-

wood that if Vie could come to an understanding in regard to

the security of the balance of tbB money to he paid, other

than the ~irst $500, that I thought ~r Lockwood wo~ld act

18 as a juror and folloVi my request as to the manner as to the

19 way he Viould vote for or against acquittal. I told him

that I requested him, rather, that during the forenoon

that he g'et for me the sum of ~::4,OOO, that I v;ould see him

during the noon hour and soon after adjournment of court,

I think, anJ at that time I wished him to turn over the

$4,000 to me that I could make the negotiations with ~r

LockWOOd, if possible, when he rang me up in the afternoon.

tIr Darrow's ansv;er was: ITI v·;ill try to get the money, if

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 I ~~~_~_t~~e.1f I said that if we wished to continue negotia­

2 tions it would be necessary to have the money at the noon

3 hour, that I had made arrangements to meet Mr Lockwood

4 before he would return to his office in the afternoon. That

5 is all of the conversation that I had at that time that I

6 remember at this time.

7 Q How, did you meet him again at any time before your

8 telephone conversation? A I did.

9 Q And at what time and place, and Vlllo was present?

10 .A I met 1fr Darro\\' some time between 12 and 2 in his

11 office in the Higgins BUilding.

12 Q That was on the Monday following your conversation with

13 t:r Lockwood?

14 I.:onclay.

That was on the 27th day of Nove~ber, on

15 Q Vihat was said and done between you and !.'Ir DarroVi at

16 that time, on Monday noon?

17 l1E POGERS: The time and place.

18 Q Monday noon, at his office, in the Higgins Building,

19 he stated it Between- pardon me ... - I asked 1;:r Darro ......

20 if he had brought the money -- that I had -- the money with

.21 him, that -- I might not attempt to repeat the exact lan-

22 guage -- that I might conclude any negotiations that I might

23 have with I~r Lockwood that afternoon wIlen he called. 1.lr

24 DarroVi told me that he didn't have the mone~ I have for-

gotten his reason for not haVing it, but at least he told25 ,

26 me lie didn't have the r.loney. and then I repeated again the.



1

--- --------------~

request that he get it for me that afternoon, if possible,

2 and that I would see him some time after 5 o'clock that

3 evening. That is the substance of the conversation as I

4 remember it at this time.

5 Q Then you didn't see him again after that noon conver-

6 sation until you had the telephone conversation with Mr

7 Lockwood? A Ho sir, I did not.

8 Q After you had your conversation with Er Lockwood on

9 Monday afternoon, did you again see Mr Darrow before you

10 went out to Mr Lockwood's house? A I did.

11 Q

12 A

At ~11at time and place, and who was present?

At about 5:30 o'clock in the office of Mr Darrow in

13 the Higgins Building in this ci ty.

14 Q

15 A

Vfilat was said and done at that time and place?

I asked Mr Darrow --

16 rm ROGERS: Anybody present?

17 Q By fur Ford: Anybody else present? A Mr Darrow and

18 myself being present.

19 Q

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Anyone else present?



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

---~
A Not to my knowledge. 1 then told Mr. Darrow that 1 had

teceived a telephone caJ.l from Mr. Lockwood, requesting me

to call at his residence that night to--that night--l then

asked him if he had gotten the money and he informed me

that he had not, but if the safety deposit department of

the bank, the name of which 1 have forgotten--waa open,
he

that the money could be procured, and/then took down the

telephone and :!>phoned some place that 1 don't know anything

about, and when he hung up the 'phone he told me that the

safety deposi t department of the bank was closed and he

11 was unable to get the money that night. 1 then requested

12 and asked if he could have the money for me in the mor ning.

13 He said, "Yes", that he would guarantee--no, pardon me, he

14 didn't use that expresaion--he then informed me that he

15 would have the money at his office in the Higgins Building

16 th~ next morning some time before 9 o'clock. That is about ,

Q What next did you do that evening after talking with lli.

DarroVl, on llonday evening, November 27th? A 1 went back

all of the conversation we had at that time ~remomber of-­

well, possibly--he asked me who was going to drive me out.
I

1 told him intended to use the same machine that 1 had
~

always used. That is about all that 1 remember o~_~__ ...:.--._.""

Q What machine had you always used up to that time, in

visi ting Mr. Lockwood? A 1 t was the s arne machine that Mr.

McKelvey had owned, it was at that time owned by Mh

Hoffman.

I
I
i
L
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to my of:ice, 1 called up the station where Mr. Hoffman-­

that Mr. Hoffman used for his calls for his machine, and

requested him to come to the office With the machine and

w ai t ther e un til 1 arrived. 1 then left and had my dinner

at the restaurant immediately above the Chamber of Commerce

BUilding. 1 went back to the office and got in the machine

at about 6:30 o'clock, requested the driver to drive me

to eas t Los Angel es, which he did.

Q What place in East Los Angeles? A 1 went to the resi­

dence of Captain C. E. White, 1 think, on Avenue 24, butl

am not sure.

Q Had you ever tal ked wi th Cct> tain C. E. Whi te prior to

that time in reference to this matter? A 1 had.

Q When and where was the fitsit time you had talked to Cap-

tain White about this matter? A Monday, the 27th day of

november, 1911.

Q A~t what time of day? A 1 think in the forenoon, about

11 0 'clock.

Q And at what place? A At his place of bus iness on nor th

Broadway in this ci ty •

Q Do you know the number of his place of business on north

BroadWay? A 1 do not. It is near the corner of Avenue 24

and North Broadway, known at that time as Downey Avenue, 1

believe.

Q Just state who was present and what was said and done

at that time between you and C~ain White. A

bib r
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the store and met a gentleman whose name 1 don't know, and '

2 asked him if Captain White was there. He told me yes, he

3 was in the back roQm. About that time Captain White made

4 his appearance from the rear of the store. 1 sai d, "How

5 do you do, Captain?" And he says, "Hello) Bert") or some

6 thing to that effect. 1 says, "Captain, 1 would like to

7 talk to you for a moment or two privately." He saya, "All

8 right, come in the back room." We repaired to the back roo

9 and as we sat down the same gentleman that was in the fr'ont

10 of the store came in to Where we were and Captain White

11' introduced me to him, but his name 1 have forgotten--and

12 informed me it was his par tner in the jewelry business.

13 That gentleman asked Cl;p tain White a few questions in regar

14 to matters of business and left and went towards the front

15 of the store. 1 then informed Captain White that 1 was

16 working for the defense in the McNamara case and that 1

17 wished to talk with him in regard to a matter of the utmost

18 importance andof the utmost secrecy. He assured me that 1

L

19 could do so and said anything 1 repeated to him he would

20 keep inviolate •

. 21 MR. ROGERS. He would do what, please, Mre Reporter?

22 ()Las t s tatemen tread. )

23 A Keep inviolate. 1 then told him that 1 had opened nego-

24 tiations with George N. Lockwood) working to\vards the end

25 to have him act as a juryman, one of the jurors in the

26 McUamara case, and that in furtherance
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believe that George Lockwood is this kind of a man, that

if he gives me his word that he will do a certain thing

that he will do that thing, and Captain said, "If you are

satisfied, Why, other people should be."

Mr. Lock'Wood that 1 would give to him theswm of $4,000,

$500 of which was to be paid in ca~h and the $3,000--

$3,500 was to be held in trust by a mututal friend, and __--,"-
. ----------

that 1 had suggested him. He says, "~ God, Franklin,

1 wouldn1 t true t GeDrge Lockwood as far as 1 could

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

throw a bull by the tail." Well, 1 said, Captain, 1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

I
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ete 1 II then a~~ed him if

2 three thousand fi ve

he Twould be the custodian of that

hundred dollars. He said he didn't
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3 know whether he had better take that up or not, and asl:ed

4 me what ,"as in it for him. I told him if he Twou.ld be cus-

5 todian of that money and pay .. i t to Mr Lockwood upon my order

6 that I would pay him the sum of $100 for his trouble. And

7 he then asked me when these transactions were to take place,

S and I told him I had an engagement to see Mr Loc}~;ood in

9 the afternoon and that I probably, unless he objected, would

10 bring Captain Lockwood to his house that evening at about

11 6:30 O'Clock. He said that would be all right. That is the

12 substance of the conversation as 1 recall i t at thi s time.

13 fuR FORE: I do not want to start any argument, the matter is

14 not of very much importance, but if counsel do not object to
15 I ammy suggesting to him,~going to suggest the name of that

16 pertner. Is that all right?

17 MR ROGERS: 1O:es.

18 Q By Mr Ford: The name of that partner, was it Mr A H

19 New, was i~ not~ Mr Franklin, or do you recall it?

20 A The name is familiar to me, but I do not know whether

21 in that connection or not; I don't remember. I wouldj ,

22 know him if I saw him.

23 QR FORD: No harm done.

24 1JR ROG~S: Toot is such a n~_~; pro ceeding t too.

25 Q By llr Ford: Now, that conversation occurred, I believe

26 you stated, in the morning before you had th3 telephone c
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1 versation?< A ,At about 11 a.m. on the 27th day of Uovember,

2 1911.

3 Q How, did you at any ti.me report that ma. tter to r.Tr Dar-

4 row, about Captain 'Nhi te acting as custodian? h Yes sir,

5 f did.

6 Q. YThen and where was the first time you discussed that

7 matter with Mr Darrow? A I think at his office, between

8 12 and 2 0' cloclt, of Hovember 27, 1911.

9 Q At trill. t time, what was said beh\'een you and Mr Dar-o

10 row in reference to that sub ject? A I told fur Darrow at

11 that time that I had seen Mr flliite, that he was a man in

12 whom I had the utmost confidence, and that it might become

13 necessary to use him for a stake holder, or words to that

14 effect I don't think I used the wo rd n stakeholder ll
•

15 I have ~c5rgotten just the language.

"16 <Y.

17 A

What reply, if any, did Mr Darror. make to that?

He asked me if I thought Cap was all right, again the

18 second time, and I said "Yes", I thought he was.

Q
19 You told Captain White, I understood you to testify,

20 tha.t yOll Via uld bri ng h1r Lockwood to his house, Uhi te' s

21 house, that evening after Lockv;ood telephoned; is that

22 correct? A I testified 1. told l·/lr White that I would,

23 \':i th hi s permi ssion, bring If..r Lockwood to his house that

night at about 6:30 o'clock.24

25 Q Was it or was it not your antention to pay the money

26 to Lockwood at White's house that night? A Yes sir.



1 r::-::;;~. returning

2 at White's house in
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again to the evening that you arrived

the machine, did you rID et l'ilr Whit e

this time, was in the parlor of their residence when I went

Did you have a conversation with him~

His wife, as 1 recall it atWho else was present?

Yes sir.A

Yes sir.A

A

" • 'i'tho. t time, !'nonday even:l ng'there at3

4

5

6
in, and after speaking to me a moment she left, I don't

7

8
know where she went.

Q No one else was present at any time except the ~hites
9

10

11

12

during the beginning, as you testified?

1m ROGERS: Possibly you are going to lead.

1m FORD: Possibly. that is my habit; I wanted to save time.

Vii thdraw the question.
13

14
Q Was anyone else present? A Not while I talked to Mr

Whi te, nO. sir.
15

the first minute of my conversation.

do, Nr Franklin? I am glad to see you. How are you getting

utes; ahout one minute of that time Mrs Yihi te was present,
;

conversatjon during just what portion of the time 11rs White

was present? A I talked to Captain White about five min-

Just state Vl"hat wa3 sa id and done and '.ind:icatej~,:your

lIo";';", what ...ms said v:-hile she was present? A "HhW do youQ

Q
16

17

18

19

20

21

Q After she left, what was said and done between you a

22
along,

23
thank

24
left.

25

26

and ho'T. are your family?" I said: "Very nicely,

you; and how are you?" That is about all, and she
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1 Captain White? A I told Captain Whi te of the telephone

2 that I had received from Mr Lockwood, telling him it was

3 impossible for him to meet me that afternoon, and that I

4 ~~d an ,engagement that night to Meet Mr 10ck~00d at his

5 place at Walnut Station. I as-ked him if he wished to go

6 with me for a ride, and he sa id no, that he didn I t think

7 he cared to go. I then asked Captain White to be at --

8 asked pim if h~ could be at the corner of Thi.rd and Main
in this city .

9 Stree!/at about 15 minutes till 9 the next morning, the

10 28th day of :November, 1911.

11 wished him to.

He said that he could, if I

12
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16

17

18
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25
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523n,i­, I
. I lip

, I

Q Pardon me just a moment, Mr. Franklin. In your conver- ,rrt"
. 1 t

sation With Mr. ~i te did you mention the date of the next H
I'

t·;

,
";

~ .
.·1 ;

Il

i:
I:
~"

1 des ir ed, however, to have the

Of course, he didn't mention it, and

Now, 1 object to the procedure as leading and

what the next day was.

Witness to be explicit as to whether he actually said that

or as ,to whether that was a parenthetical remark for the

benefit of the Court and the jury and counsel, because 1

knew that counsel would argue the very thing he argues

the witness having said it, counsel now desires to get

it out.

that conversation?"

suggestive.

MR. FORD. 1 would like to be heard just a moment. The

Witness testified,"l asked him if he could meet me the next

day at about 9:15 at the corner of Third and .Main, the

next day, the 28th day of November J 1911." NoW', 1 under­

stood that the Witness was endeavoring to deSignat~vhat

the next day was, 1 didn't for a moment contemplate that

the Witness was testifying that he actually said the next

day--I understood the witness' remark to be simply a

parenthetical remark by him to indicate to me and to the j

day? A How is that?

MR. ROGERS. He said BO, and, of course, it Bounded, if

your Honor pleases,_ so unnatural and so much as if it were

a recitation that counsel wishes, right after it, reading th

last answer, "Did 'he mention the date of the next day in

15p 1
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difference inrules of examination between witnesses M thi

evidence, it seems to me, in presenting the testimony of

THE COURT· pead the question.

1m _FORD- And 1 will state this at this time, there is no

.' .
1 knew that counsel would discuss the

THE COURT- 1 want to give you every necessary latitude

to examine the witness, but within the strict rules of

time or later_

unnatur alnesa of such a s tatem,etl1;i, 1 knew that counsel

would attel~t to construe the parenthetical remark of

this witness into meaning that the witness had related

and testified that he said that_

the witness, if he has made statements that come up, what

occurred in chronological order, you should ask the Witness

what followed, am you get the evidence.

:MR FORD _ I am s tr ictl y wi thin the rules. If your Honor

will indicate upomvha t ground the obj ection is sus tained,

1 will ask that the quee tion be read.
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kind and any other kind, excepting in this, that some­

times leading and suggestive questions are permitted, but

your Honor may feel under circumstances in this case ~ith

thia prticular wi ~ness, that your Honor will not allow me

to ask him leading and suggestive questions, and that is
. entirely

a matter/within yol:U' Honor's discretion and over which 1

have no quarrel. But, there is no difference in rules of

examination of thia kind of a witness and any other kind

of a wi tness •

MR 0 ROGERS. In order that the ques tion rray be unders tood,

1 request that your Honor direo:-:t the reporter to read the

previous answer of the witness.

THE COURT 0 Yes, read the question and answer 0

(Last two questions· and answer read.)

1m 0 FORDo 1 will wi thdraw the question, in the form it

is before the Courto

Q. BY MR. FORDo Directing your attention, Mro Franklin, to

the last words of your answer, "28th day of November, n

s tate whether or no t those wer e the words us ed by you to

the wi tness or whether they are an explanation to the Court

and jury?

MR. ROGERS 0 Huh t

MR. FORD. Wi thdraw that.

Q State whether or not those were the worda used by you

to the witness, Mr. White? A No, air, those are my own

words.26

I

L
---~~~--------------=-
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Q Are you endeavoring to testify With regard to that

conversation verbatim or in substance?

MR. ROGERS. Now, if your Honor pleases, that is the most

unique kind of a situation. Of course, we have all been

impress ed--

MR. FREDERICKS. IS there an objection?

m. ROGERS. 1 am about to make one and 1 /ViII make it when

my. good time comes.

MR. FREDERICKS. 1 suppose so.

24

25

26
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first.

ment to the Court when there is no objection.

suggestive, and calling for the witness to make a certain

MR FREDERICKS: We ob ject to the co nnsel making an argu-

We assume that the objection shall be made

~~ ROGERS: If your Honor please, a ~itness atte~pt to

relate a conversation and attempt

objection.

THE COURT: We ~ill assume counsel is going to make an

first in order that we may understand what the argument is,

:MR FREDERI CKS :

THE COURT: Yes, Mr Fredericks is right.

lJR ROGERS: Objected to on the ground it is leading and

Smi.Jh
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13 explanation v.-hich is T'ut into his mouth intentionally and

14

15
Which they desire to have him use in order to explain.

A man having certain infelicities that a~pear in his testi-

16 noney, any ~an who has been listening to the testimony, if

17 your Honor please, that has sat around the. cOllrt-room for

18 any length of time

19 MR FORD: I ask that the jury be excused now.

20 1m ROGERS < -- knows that tha t. testimonJ-T --
21 THE COURT: The jury will not be excused.

22 till ROGERS: Kno\~ th at the testimony sounded like a- -
23 recitation Saturday afternoon in the old red school-house.

24 It sounded as if he v.-ere repeating everything that he had

25 repeated over and over, time and time again. He used

26 that are not natural to him, apparently. ~e are not ob-
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1 jecting to his using the words that he used in stating

2 a truth in fact, but on the contrary, that the District

3 AttorneY has written out and got before him. lTov:, counsel

4 realizes that, and having realized it m'Dl: nov: just about

5 the time everybody else in the court-room realizes it, now

6 he seeks to explain it and account for it to the jury. He

7 is trying to make an argument to the jury. He said, well

8 this did sound awfully unnatural and we muld like to

9 have the witness explain it, so it won't sound so unnatural.

10 He is trying to get into the testimony right now, leading

11 him so, the witness is going on to relate the conversation

12 and relate the substance of it as best he can no ob ject-

13 ion to that, but realizing just what I have sajd he says

14 now, after three or four different questions, not one of

15 which was proper, some of v:hich he wi thdrew and some of

16 "vvhich were objected to and objection sustained; now, I am

17 using my oVin wOTds, I am not attempting to relate it verbatim,

18 I have no doubt that is true; everybody knows it is not ver­

19 batim conversation because, of course, opinions may differ

20 as to whether the conversation occurred that 'Way or noV,

21 but it is apparent, if your Honor please, that he is merely

22 attempting to get before the jury an expression of something

23 tlmt he realized was apparent all the time. Every man and

24 woman in the court-room l:new that thi S witnesG \":as reciting

25 something, and it sounded like it, and now he is going to

26 say -- explain v;hy you appear to be reci ting, and I conte
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1 if your Honor please, he ought not to do that. I say there

2 is nothing objectionable about the question itself, but the

3 question __ the whole s.ituation is objectionable, the last

4 five or six questions are objectionable, and this question,

5 bearing in mind the other questions, is objectionable. Now,

6 this ~itness ought to be handled just in accordance with

7 the rUles of law and merely give us a fair show.

8 TEE COURT: I believe and agree ±'im± wi.th yon as to that

9 part of it, but I cannot see yourppint in regard to this

10 question.

11 !;'ffi ROGERS: This question I am admi tting is not ob jection-

12 able in its form; that question isnot objectionable; it is

13 objectionable only considered with the other questions and

14 the purpose of it.

15 THE COURT: The witness should ans~er the question; objection

18 THE COtBT:

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

16 overrul ed.

171m FREDERICKS: There is another point, your Honor.

There is nothing before the Court at this time.
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That is the statement of counsel. Now, 1 am per-to him.

it over.

MR. ROGERS. Certainly. 1 didn't mean that Bap tain Freder­

icks wrote it. 1 know he didn't because he was not in the

ment before him. . \'

MR. FREDERICKS. 1 am going to put something before the

MR. FREDERICKS. That is assuming that somebody did wri te it

MR • ROGERS. He has had a chane e to see it again and look

Court. Learned counsel for the defense saw fit to say

that this witness, in :ijis judgment, was deciding something

written out for him by the district attorney and submitted

fectly willing to earn my bread and butter the. best 1 know

how in the practice of the profession that 1 have chosen

for the purpose of earning my bread and butter, but 1 have

never considered that it was necessary in doing that that

1 should be compelled to endure such statements as that.

THE COURT. 1 would like to have the Reporter read that

statement. 1 did not understand it that way. 1 uroerstood

Mr. Rogers to say that the district attorney had the state-

State of California when it was done.

MR. FORD' 1 11 ish to say for the sake ofT counsel, and like

everybody else, like every attorney, 1 have interrogated

witnesses at various times in reference to what they know

about th~ case. Sometime ago 1 took the statement of what

Mr. Franklin has told me about the facts in the case in the

26 presen ce of a stenographer, and to the best of my know-

I
I
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le~ge and belie'f he has never seen it since.

THE COURT. What is there before the Court?

MR • FREDERICKS. Nothing, your Honor 0

loR. APPEL. 1 think it is a matter--

THE COURT· Absolutely nothing before the Court unless you

want to present something.

MR. APPEL. There ought not m be any statement of fact-­

THE COURT 1 qUite agree with you there should be no state­

ment of fact, and 1 again admonish the jury as to this

particular discussion and as to the other discussions that

have taken place this morning, that the statements of

counsel onei ther side, are not to be regarded as testimony

in any way, shape or form.

MR. FORD· 1 want the question to be answered, then 1 will

suggest another matter to the Court. Answer the question_

(Last question read by the reporter. )

A As 1 ha":e said in all of my answers 1 don't attempt and

it is impossible for me to give the exact language using.

1 am attempting to give the gist of all conversations

that 1 attempt to relate. Q Now, attractbg your attention

toyour converaa tion in yC'ur answer the 28 th day of Novem­

ber, state whether or not those were the worda used by

you at that time in your conversation to Mr. Whi te?

A They were not.

MR. FORD. Now, if the Court please, before 1 proceed fur-

ther , to ask any further questions of this witness, 1
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to call your Honor's attention to a matter t!~at is really

not a small matter and it is not done in any spirit of

criticism of counsel, but that ia this: There is atime

when c'ouneel will address the jury on the value and effect

of the testimony of every witness, they will discuss with

the jury the effect of this wi tness 1 tea timony • They

will have a right at that time to claim .th3.t his answers

are unnatural; that it is a frameup or a fake or any other

terms that best express their methods and habits of think­

ing, but this is not the time ani they haven't the right,

during the examination of the witn~ss, for the purpose of

disconcerting the witness or for any other purpose, or for

any purpose, to influence the mind of the jury or any other

persons, to discuss the effect or value of this witness'

testimony,that the apparent misunderstanding of the witness

or apparent truthfulnes-s of the witness. While there is

nothing befOre the Court 1 ask your Honor that the first

time that occurs on either side to immediately stop the

proceedings. 1 think as a matter of decorum in court and

as a matter of respect to the Court, and the methods of

procedure that your Honor ought to stop that thevery next

atteLpt that is made upon that matter. 1 don't desire

to participate in a discussion at this time. Just

simply make the statement.

Q Now, Mr. Franklin--

THE COURT. 1 think your comments are out of order, Mr.
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1

2

MR. FORD. Q, Mr. Franklin, after having this

with Mr. Whi te what did you do in tb e evening

.c---.:::..---------I.," -533' /
ecnver BatienJ
of November

3 27th? A 1 left his residence, got inthe machine and was

4 slowly driven towards the residence of Mr. I.ockwood, arriving

5

6

7

8

at Mr. Lockwood's house at about 8':45 o'clock P.M.

Q Did you see Mr. LockVlcod at tha t time? A 1 did.

Q Rave a conversation with him? A 1 did.

Q Who was present at the time you had the conversation

(

L
A Nobody but ~. Lockwood and myself, to roy

12 don t t know.

13 Q Where VIas he when you left him? A Inhis rrachine.

14 Q Just state What the conversation was at that time between

15 you and Mr. l,ockwood.

22
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26
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~4
oi tbl. A Mr Lockwood said: !TEert, let's waJ.k around towards the ")

~
2 rear of the house." I v'ialked vii th him. We v.alked into the

3 immediate vicinity of' his stable. 10ckv;ood said: "Where is

4 Darrovl"?" I said: "Why, George, di d you think Mr 1)arro\"1 Vias

5 coming wi.th me?" He said: "Yes, that is what I understood."

6 "Well", I said, 11 you wasmistaken; I intended to bring Captain

7 \Yhite, but he apparently didn't wish to come. Tl Hm said, "Well,!
6

8 Bert, what have you got to propose?" I said, -.:. I first
north

9 }?roposed that we walk lltxcrnmt tov.ards the north line of Mr
10 Lockwood's }?roperty, as he tol·d me. At that time we walked

\

11 north about seventy-five feet to what he said was the north

12 line of his property. I then said "Well George, what COl1-

13 elusion have you come to, and vihat do you wish to do ?11

14 "Well" , he said, "I don't knO'll; I don't know hardly what to

15 think about it. I don't like Charley Whi te to hold that

16 moneyll, and asked. me if I had any objections to Henr:l Yonkin

17 holding the balance of the money to be paid him later on.

18 I said I certainly did object to Henry Yonkin having anything

19 to do v.. i th an;y transaction of that ~:ind in "i;hich I YiaS inter­

20 ested, and at that time asked him if he would accept another

21 gentleman that I mentioned in }11ace of Captain VT'ni te. He

22 said "Ho",that he didn't know him, and. said Captain I'lhite was

23 satisfactory to hin. I said, " All right, George; be at the

24 corner of Third and 10s Angeles street at 9 o'clock a.m.

25 tomorrow morning and I Twill see you there at that time."

26 During the last part of the conversation we r.ere slowly
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1 walking west towards the front line of hi s Ilrop~rty near the

2 road. Mr Lockv;ood then said, "Well, Bert, it is time for you

3 to golf, and I left after bigding him good-night.

4 Q You say that you directed him to meet you at the corner

5 of Third and Los Angeles streets? A I requestei, him to,

6 yes sir.

7 Q Was there a.ny other discussion had at that time \";i th

8 reference as to where you should meet? A Yes sir.

9 Q What was said? A He asked me to meet him in the

10 Federal Building in this ci t;)1 and I told him I \'10 uld not

11 do that because I was too Vlell known there.

14 A Before that.

15 Q By whom was the meeting place at Third and Los Angeles

16 Street suggested? A By myself. ~....~~~-'

17 Q

18 A

19 Q

Did you report this visit at any time to Er Darro~?

I did.

When -- just pardon me a ~oment -- after leaving Lock-

20 WOOdis house where did you go? A I came home.

When did you next meet Mr Darrow?

about 8:45 o'clock -- 8:4~.

A The next morning 1
...... )

..,......~
..-

23 Q·~·~·'~.A;d~t'what place? A At his office in the Higgins
~----_..__.------~--~_._-_ ....._~.,---,,-~ ..._,-----_...~------ ...._-_._.- .......----~---_.--~<.~--------

24 BUilding, this ci ty.

26 the only ones present.
~ ~._.""-----.. ----_._~......--.-'----..._-----

25 Q Who else was present? A !~ Darrow and myself T.ere



3 rangements to meet Captain ~~ite a~ Third and Main streets

Darrow if he had gotten the money; that I had made ar-

AState what was said and done at that time?1

4 and turn over to him the sum agreed upon; made arrangements

5 to meet him at 8:45. He said that he had not at that time

6 received the money, but that he would ,'ring Job up and find

j

(

l

7 out what time hw would be at the office with the money.

8 TiLR ROGERS: Ring up who?
/

9 A Job. I then said, "It. is almost time for me to meet (
\
"

10 with Captain 111hi te", and it was necessary to act qUickly.

11 He then took down the 'phone and. rang up somebody unknown

14 As I recall it at this time, that is all the conversation

\
\
)

/

(
to, but after hang-;

f

about ten minutes" • ')
\
\

\

I don't know who it was he spoke

Did you hear what ~r Darrow said in the telephone?

Yes.

me,

16 Q

17 .!\

13 ing it up he said, "Job will be here in

15 we had at that time.

12 to

A He asked if Job was there, and18 Q Just repeat that.

19 then hung up the 'phone.

20 Q What next occurred? A In about five minutes Mr

)'
E . I.arrl- I

\
\

\

21 man came into the offi ce of r\Cr Darrow wi th hi s overcoat on

22 his left arm. lIe said, "Good morning, Franklin; good morning

23 Er DarrowlY
, and wal~:ed \,,;ith lIr Darrow into the room immediate·

24 ly adjoining on the north.

25 l HOVi long did they remain in there; A In' a bout ten"

26 second.s ILr Darrow came out and handed. me a roll of bills,
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12 A $4, oeo .

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23-
•

24

25

26

1 small roll, and said -- I don't think he made any remark

2 at that time at all; just han ded me the money, is my recol-

3 lection of it.

4 Q What did you do? A I immediately left the office,

5 went to the elevator, looked to see how much money there

6 was in the roll, and held it in my hand and went down the

7 elevator.

8 Q Rov. much

9 1m ROGERS: Read that last answer. (Last answer read by

10 the reporter)

11 MR FORD: How much money was there in that roll?



2 denominationa, just generally whether it was gold, silver

, I
19B 1 Q, And in wha t kind of money--l am not asking you for
~

3

538 1

4 Q Do you remember the denorr,ina tiona 7 A 1 think 60, yes,

A One one thousand dollar bill and

tion.

six five hundred dollar bills, to the best of my redollec-

5 sir.

6 Q What were they?

7

8
-.,,/' 9 Q What next did you do after going down in the elevator?

10 A 1 went to the corner of Second ar~d Main str-eet, turned

11 south on the wes t side of Main to near the corner 0 f fh ir d

12 and Main where 1 met 0aptain Whi tee

Q Did you at that time--atate what was said and done

between you and Captain White at that time, if anything.
13

14

15 A 1 said, !lGood morning, Captain". He answered me, "Good

16 morning, Bert." 1 said, "Cap tain, 1 have the money. It He

17 answered and said that that was a poor place to hand it

18 to him and requested that 1 go With bim into a saloon

19 immediately north of there, which we did.
---------,.•"'-<>.-"-'-

20 Q What saloon? A 1 don't know. 1 never had been in

21 ther e before, that 1 remember •

!~
i.

25 s tr eet.

26 Q On the west .side, you said? A Yes, sir •

Q On what street is the saloon? A On Main Street, just

north of Third.

Q On which side of the street? A 11:e west side of the

22

23

24
'1;
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1 Q What occurred in the saloon between you and C~ tain

2 White'? A We walked up to the bar and 1 asked Captain

3 what be would have to dr ink--

4 Q, Well--

5 it.

A Well--l will give it all to you if you want

6 Q Go ahead and give it all. A He said, "Whiskey", and

7 we both drank whiskey, and while the drinks were being

8 prepared I handed him the roll of money.

9 Q Did you at that time have any conversation in reference

10 to the money or ycur negotiations? A No tat that

11 morr,ent, no, sir. yJater on.

12 Q What was next said and done? A We left the saloon and

13 1 walked with the Captain to the corner of Third and Main

14 and during the interim of time that we were walking there

. 15 1 told h 1m to pay to Mr. Loc kwood $500 in money, keeping $350

16 to be paid to him at a later date on my order. F.e sa~~,

17 "All rigbt, Bert, 1 will do the best 1 can.", or words "

18 to that effect, and left rue.

19 Q Did you tell hirnwhere LockWood was? A I did.

20 Q What dicl you tell him in reference to that subject"! ~

21

22

23

24

25

26

A 1 told him that he had agreed to be at Third and Los

Angeles street at about 9 o'clock.~~~.~,~v~_.""'-~~
.....--..~ - ~ -~ ~'-"'-'''''- ' ;Q.--"" --- ~ ..~ ,.- ,-. ~. - ,.- -,- .,' .~ '--~_..

Q Wh;;-; did you go? A I" walked about 75 feet behind Cap-

tain White east on Third Street towards Los Angeles, and

Captain Vihi te walkedto the eas t side --nor theas t corner

of Third and Los Angeles street, and 1 crossed in a Bout -



10 until 1 saw Mr. Campbell pass the center of the block between
I I

11 Main and Los Argeles streets, when 1 turned and walked

17 across the street and into a rear entrance of a saloon at

18 the northwest corner of Third and 1.0s Angeles, corning out

19 qUickly and lookir.g to t"he corner 1 saw Mr. Borne looking

20 around the corner in that direction. 1 stood there for a

'Ii
l: ~

il
;,1

1 walked

1 walked straight

west from Ttird Street"--pardon me--"you and 1 had better

few moments when Captain White and Mr. Lock-woodfcame

me from the eas t side of the street, coming up to :,t". Cap tain

White said, "Bert, it is all right." And 1 said, "Good morn

ing, George; how do you do?" and shOOk hands with him.

1 then said, "GelDrge, you and 1 had better take a walk

detective from the police station.

He said, "How do you dO, Bert;" and walked on.

about fifty feet farther and turned around and stood there

540

easterly direction towards the southeaa t corner of Third

and Los Angeles street.

Q State what you saw and heard there at that time; what

occurred? A 1 stood there a few moments, walked east

on Third Street toward WaD, where 1 !Let a gentleman from

the office of the district attorney, ~. C~1pbell, detective,

1 believe, in his office. 1 said, "Good N.orning, Jim."

back--rather I walked back' towards Third and 1.06 Angeles,

crossing the street west, going east about fifty feet on

Third street from Lea Angeles on the south side of the

street, 1 crossed over and about that time saw Mr. Heme, a

1
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1 take a short walk. 11 We then walked west onMain street,
.-

2 leaving Captain Whi te there to Third and Main, turned north

3 on :Main str eet . towards Second. Dur ing that time 1 asked

4 him if he had re ceived the money and he said that he had.

5 MR. APPEL - Just a moment.

6 MR. FORD- 1 don,t know what right counsel has to stop the

7 wi tness unless he wants to 0 bject.

8 MR. ROGERS· We have every right inthe world to stop a

9 witness if we desire to make an objection e

10 MR. APPEL- We object totl!:le testimony on the ground it is

11 I incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial and not permiasible

und er the rul es.12

13

14

MR. FORD·

stated--

In answer to the question what occurred he

15 THE COUR T· overrul ed.

16 :MR. APPEL - We ask tbatit be s tr icken out on the same

17 ground as stated •

18 •THE COUR T Motion to s tr ike denied •

19 MR • Appel. Exception.

20 MR. FORD. ~ardon me just a moment. Q You said you were

21 going west on Main? A 1 said 1 went west on Third Street

22 to Main and turned north on Main towards Second.

23

24

25

26

Q Mai n street runs nor th and south?

Q Now, go ahead.

A 1 believe so.



mitll A Went a little over half way from Third to Second on

2 Main Street, and I stopped and turned partially around

3 MR APPEL: Wait a moment, we object to the evidence of

4 any act of his or any other act or declaration of anyone

5 else except the acts and declarations of the defendant,

6 upon the ground that they are incompetent, irrelevant,

7 immaterial and hearsay.

8 THE COURT: Objection overruied.

9 !UR FORD: Go ahead. A And at that time I;:r Erovme, from

~.....­--10 the District Attorney's office, placed me under arrest.

11 Q

12 Q

Did you see the defendant at that time? A I did.

Where was he? A Coming across Main Street in a

13 southeasterly direction.

14 Q Did you have any conversation with him at that time?

15 A I did not.

16 Q 'Was anything said on the part of either one of yon to

17 the other? A Yes, tho defendant made a statement.

18 Q r1hat"did he say? A
1

I don t remember his exact lan-

19 guage.

I think heAWell, in substance then.

they are onto yo~'. I mado no reply.21~ -- - -.. ,... , " " - ..

22 MR APPEL : Wait a moment •

1m FORD: Vlliat ~as next done or said; state what occurred?
23
24 A. I walked wi th I'.'Ir Campbell to the o::'fice 0 f the Di strict

20

Attorney.

Attorney.
25

Q
26

Who? A Mr Campbell, to the office of the
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1 Q When you got to the District Attorne y' s 0 ffice v;hat

2 occurred?

3 1JR APPEL: Wait a moment. We object to this upon the grounl

THE COURT: I am asking the sheriff. Apparently he is not

present.

M.R FREDERICKS: We ask that a bench v:arrante be issued for

Harry Skillan. Mr Clerk, you have the

him and put in the hands of the sheriff.

THE COURT: The sheriff reports that he is not here. The

sUbpoenae is regularly returned, is it?

TEE . CLET\K: Yes si r.

THE COURT: Let the bench v:arrant issue and v;itness broug

for the next one.

name.

that it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial, no founda

tion laid and hearsay.

THE COURT: I am not going to go into that at this time.·

The reporter can read the question when Court convenes at

2. 0 I clock. -' It is very necessary that the noon adjournments

be very prompt.

till FREDERICKS: I just ask that the name ofcs. witness be

called so that the Sheriff may be instructed to look for him

during the noon hour, and if he cannot be found I may ask

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

•



1
2 bofore the Court forthwith. .

3 (Juryadmonishod. ReoeDs until 2 P.M.)
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